
 
CITY OF SAN ANTONIO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
FOR  

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK FOR  
TERMINAL A RENOVATIONS AT THE SAN ANTONIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

 
AMENDMENT #3, September 30, 2011 

 
Amendment #3 includes the responses to questions received in writing, revisions to RFQ, solicitation documents 
and/or required forms.     
 

I. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS TO RFP 
 
1. On page 4, the budget is provided and the selection and award timeline are provided, please include the anticipated 

completion time for construction services.  
Response:  The construction timeline and associated packages of construction will be decided during the pre-
construction services phase of the contract. 

 
 

2. On page 11, please further define the difference between proposed construction phase services fee and CM@Risk fee. 
Response: The CM@ Risk fee is the cost of work, managing the work, GCs and overall project costs.  “Proposed 
construction phase services fee” has been deleted from the Cost Methodology table located on page 11 of the RFP.   
Refer to Refer to Section II, Revisions to the RFP and Required Forms for the revision.    
 

 
3. Page Limitations: Page 6, Item G, of the RFP states Tab 6 is limited to 13 pages. Page 7 of the RFP states a limit of 13 

pages in total. Form 2 states a 15 page limit for Tab 6  includes: Project Sheets (Which are a maximum of 3 pages), 
Project Management Approach (Which is a maximum of 3 pages), Team’s Experience in San Antonio, and Cost 
Methodology (Page 10, Item D).  
Response:  The page limitation is 13 and Form 2 has been revised to 13 pages.  Refer to Section II, Revisions to the RFP 
and Required Forms for the revision.   

 
4. Please confirm the Proposed Key Personnel (Organization Chart and Resumes (Page 10, Item 3 – Tabs 7 and 8), SBEDA 

response (Tab 5), Contracts Disclosure Forms (Tab 3), Litigation Disclosure (Tab 4), and other Tabs are not included in 
this limitation. 
Response:  No, these pages do not count towards the 13 page limitation.  

 
 
5. Key Personnel: Pages 3 and 4, and Page 10, Item 3, of the RFP depict a few assignments. To better compare submissions, 

and to limit extending too far down the organizational chart, please provide the titles of the desired key personnel to be 
submitted.  
Response:  The personnel who will be directly working on this project from upper management to the on site 
supervisors. 

 
 
6. Licensing: Page 10, Item 3, of the RFP asks for licenses of personnel (if applicable). Are specific licenses desired by the 

City? If yes, which ones.  
Response: If key personnel have licenses, list them.  The City has no mandatory licenses except as prescribed by law. 
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7. Surrounding Area: Page 11, Item C.1, of the RFP notes “surrounding area” for San Antonio Regional Issues. Please 

rea (SAMSA) including the counties of Atascosa, Bandera, 
exar, Comal, Guadalupe, Kendall, Medina and Wilson.   

k. Subcontractor and supplier bonds and insurance will be priced with the individual scopes of work during 

esponse:  Yes.  
 

Item XI.D, states a contract form is attached. This contract attachment is 

ontract template has been added to the RFP through this Amendment #3 and has been added to the 
ity’s website.     

 

t with which the City enters into negotiations. If required to be submitted with the RFP, please 

ailed or delivered to City Clerks Office located at City Hall, 2  floor, 100 Military Plaza, San Antonio, TX 
78205.   

d with the RFP response. The “Exception” and “Waiver” Forms do not need to be 

ents Request Form and Respondent/Vendor 
Subcontracting Waiver Request Form are not required with the response.    

construction and construction schedule for the project in order to estimate 

eline and associated packages of construction will be decided during the pre-construction 
ervices phase of the contract.   

13. 
contract template has been added to the RFP through this Amendment #3 and has been added to the 

City’s website.  

14. 
ed on the airport grounds in existing trailers.   Construction related activity areas 

nd storage will be limited at all times. 

 construction budget of $24,300,000 includes the CMR’s General Conditions, Fee and Pre-
ces. 

esponse:  Yes.  

define this area. Is it county related, etc.? 
Response:  The San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical A
B
 
 

8. Bonds and Insurance: Please confirm the Bonds and Insurance line item on Page 11, Item d, of the RFP is only for the 
CM at Ris
bidding.  
R

 
9. Contract Template: Page 2 (TOC) and Page 19, 

missing. Please provide this contract template.  
Response:  The c
C

 
10. Conflict of Interest: Page 20, Item J states to submit a conflict of interest questionnaire. Please confirm this will only be 

required of the responden
provide the tab number. 
Response:  The Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (CIQ) should not be submitted in the RFP package.  The CIQ form 
must be m nd

 
 
11. SBEDA Forms: Reference Attachment/Form 5 of the RFP. Please confirm if the “Utilization Commitment Form” is 

agreed upon, signed, and submitte
submitted with the RFP response. 
Response:  Yes, if the Subcontractor/Supplier Utilization Commitment Form is agreed to, signed and submitted with the 
respondent's RFP response, the Exception to SBEDA Program Requirem

 
 
12. Schedule: Please provide the anticipated pre

preconstruction and general conditions cost. 
Response:  The construction tim
s
 
 
General Conditions: Without a Contract Template, please provide a definition of the allowable general conditions costs. 
Response:  The 

 
 

Office Space: Will space inside the airport be available for the CM@R during preconstruction? 
Response:  Office space will be provid
a
 
 

15. Please confirm that the
Construction Servi
R
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16. Please provide the anticipated or proposed phasing and duration of the project as a baseline for the Cost Methodology to 

d associated packages of construction will be decided during the pre-
construction services phase of the contract. 

17. 

k, timelines and budgets.  The CM@ Risk fee is the cost of work, managing the work, GCs and overall project 
osts. 

18. Conditions. 
esponse:  This is to be negotiated as part of the CM@Risk fee. 

 3 Proposed Key Personnel;  Is there an item 2 that was 

esponse:  Item 3 Proposed Key Personnel has been revised to Item 2 Proposed Key Personnel.  

cover sheets that have only images that are not part of the submittal response counted as part of the 13 

esponse:  No, the tabs and cover sheets are not counted towards the 13 page limitation.  

tification requirement for this project? If so, which and will it be a part 

esponse:  This project will not require LEED Certification.   

ices Fee” and “CM@Risk Fee” – These 2 
se define the differences? 

esponse:  See response to question #2.  
 

submitted?  Example: 90% Construction Document Completion 

 many packages and or phases will this program/project be broken into? 
Res

 documents. 

 construction. 
D. At a minimum 2 packages. 

24. uired with the RFQ response? 
esponse:  No, not at this time.   

 

be provided as part of the response. 
Response:  The construction timeline an

 
Please elaborate or explain the CM @ Risk Fee to be provided as part of the Cost Methodology in Part D.  
Response:  The “pre-construction” phase fee is the cost of working with the Owner and Designers to develop the scope 
of wor
c
 
 
Please define what costs are to be included as part of the General 
R
 

19. Section IX.  Part A lists Item 1 Project Sheets and Item
inadvertently left out of the package.  If so, please clarify. 
R
 

20. Are the tabs and 
page limitation? 
R
 

21. Will there be a Commissioning and/or LEED Cer
of this CM at Risk or under separate future RFP? 
R
 

22. Page 11 – “D - Cost Methodology” asks for “Proposed Construction Phase Serv
line items appear to be asking for the same cost -plea
R

23. Page 4 – If approval of CM selection is January 2012: 
A. At what phase will a GMP be requested and/or 
B. What is the expected date of GMP approval?   
C. When is the expected project substantial completion date? 
D. How
ponse:   

 A.  The GMP will be requested at construction
 B.  To be determined during pre construction. 
 C. To be determined during pre
 
 
 

Is a bid bond or letter of surety req
R

 
 



CITY OF SAN ANTONIO   
RFP: CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK FOR TERMINAL A RENOVATIONS AT THE SAN ANTONIO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
 4  

25. n Antonio? 
esponse:  No, letters can be used from previously completed projects.   

26. 
esponse:  At this time baggage handling has not been identified as a component of this project.   

27. ce outside of normal business hours? 
esponse:  If the need should arise.     

 

llars being used to fund the project?  If yes, please advise if the SWMBE goals will be 

esponse:  No federal stimulus funds have been identified for this project.   

29. 
Response:  At this point relocation has not been determined.  It will be dependent upon design. 

 

II. REVISIONS TO THE RFP AND REQUIRED FORMS 

 Page 6 - Do the letters of reference need to be addressed to the City of Sa
R
 
 
Will there be a baggage handling component of this project? 
R
 
 
Will construction be required to take pla
R

28. Is there any federal stimulus do
aligned with federal mandates. 
R
 
 
Is the relocation of TSA Security included in this project program? 

 
1. Table of Content for RFP has been revised to add the following Exhibits and have been uploaded to the City’s bidding 

and opp
Exhibit 1 

 Building Wage Decision Exhibit 3 

2. Req
 II & IX of the RFP. This portion is 

ncluding forms and attachments – Indexed as Tab “6”. 
Has

 II & IX of the RFP. This portion is 
limited to 13 pages not including forms and attachments – Indexed as Tab “6”. 

3. Eva e RFP, on page 10 which states: 
nnel

ortunities website: 
 Contract Document Template 
 General Conditions Exhibit 2 

 
 
uired Forms, Form 2 which states: 
“Statement of Qualifications in narrative form that addresses items in Section
limited to 15 pages not i
 been revised to read: 
“Statement of Qualifications in narrative form that addresses items in Section

 
 

luation Criteria, section IX. of th
“3.  Proposed Key Perso :”  

Has
2.  Proposed Key Personnel

 been revised to read: 
“ :”  

4. 
e Pre-

selection process, shall be borne solely by Respondent.” 

cation of paragraph L and has been deleted.   

 

 
 

Section XI, Award of Contract and Reservation of Rights, paragraph M which states: 
 “Any cost or expense incurred by the Respondent that is associated with the preparation of the submittal, th
Submittal Conference, if any, or during any phase of the 

Is a dupli
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5. Evaluation Criteria, Section IX of the RFP, on page 11 which contains the table below:   

OTAL CONSTRUCTION BUDGET  24,300,000.00 
 

T $

 
Proposed Pre-Construction Phase Services (Lump Sum to include cost of services, overhead 
and profit for this work only): 

_____ 
 
 $____

 

 
Proposed Construction Phase Services Fee (percentage of cost of work) 
Shall include overhead and profit 

____% 
 
 _____

 

 
Proposed General Condition (percentage of cost of work) _____% 

 
____

 
Bonds and Insurance  (percentage of cost of work) ________% 
 

 
_
 

 
CM@Risk Fee (percentage of cost of work) 
Shall include subcontractor markup 

________% 
 

 
_

END OF REVISIONS 

Has been revised as follows:   

OTAL CONSTRUCTION BUDGET  24,300,000.00 
 

T $

 
Proposed Pre-Construction Phase Services (Lump Sum to include cost of services, overhead 
and profit for this work only): 

_____ 
 
 $____

 

 
Proposed General Condition (percentage of cost of work) _____% 

 
____

 
Bonds and Insurance  (percentage of cost of work) ________% 
 

 
_
 

 
CM@Risk Fee (percentage of cost of work) 
Shall include subcontractor markup 

________% 
 

 
_

No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFP are changed. 
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